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The Founders of the First Parish

HE founders of the Dover First Parsh® were a company
of men who were descended from those who were identi-
fied with the beginmings of American history,® and who

resisted what they believed to be tyranny in church and state.
For this cause they crossed stormy seas and established 2 gov-
ernment here in accordance with constitetional liberty. The
influence nf a churcli covering more than a eentury and a
half of active service cannot be measnred, cannot he weighed.
It is a silent influence which has Teft its imprint on the life
of the inhabitants, insiructing the children, training the youth,
enriching the lives of the people, and withal making the town
a better place in which to dwell. .

“The task of keeping and preserving our institutions,”
said the Hon. George F. Hoar, “sometinies seems tO me even
harder than that of establishing them. What the future may
have in store for cur children we do not know. What luxury
may tempt them, what irreligion or superstition may assail
them, what new races may overflow them, we cannot tell,
But 1 helieve that the institutions our ancestors planted are

‘to abide. Turitan faith, Saxon reverence for law, New Eng-

fand loye of liberty, will leaven the whole lump. The church
and the school and the town, which in their simplicity have
outlasted so many thrones and kingdoms, will continue.”

The history of the chireh is the early history of the town.

TThis parish was established November 18, 1748 having been
previcusly for nearly twenty years a prednet in Dedham. While a
precinct the residents were assigned by the General Court to the
churches in Medfield, Natick, and Needham, where they worshipped
and paid their ministorial tax, The hrst mecting-house was raised
August 3o, 1750, and dedicated in December, 1754, withough not fully
completed before 1760, The church connected with the parish waa
organized on Sundzy, November 7, 1762 g

*While the descent of Jaher Wood and John Griggs has not been
traced, for lack of data, yet there fs no reason to doubt that they too
were of Puritan ancestry,

I



THE FOUNDERS OF THE FIRST PARISH.

On the earliest plan that has come down to us, that made in
1794, the “meeting house,” as the accompanying map shows,
was the only building designated. This building was the
centre of all activities.

In the years to come many persons will visit this parish
te sce where their ancestors, the founders of the following
American families, set up their homes, namely: Henry Wil-
son, James Draper, Andrew Dewing, Thomas Battle, and
Nathaniel Chickering, all of whom had criginal settlements
within the present bounds of Dover, This little bock will
enable all such, as well as the descendants of the founders of
the parish, tolocate the early homes of their ancestors.

SAMUEL METCALF, who headed the petition made to the
General Court March 30, 1748, asking for the incorporation
of what is now the First Parish of Dover, was born m Med-
way,ﬁan 31, t714-15. He was a son of ‘Samuel and Mehit-
able Metealf, and was descended in the fifth generation from
_ Michael M‘etcaif -a dornick weavet who fled to this country
. from petsecution, and was admitted fo the Dedham settle-
ment m-1637, Samuel Metcalf settled the estate on Farm
Street now owned by Benjamin C, Dotr, in 1742. He was a
prominent citizen, a member of the. first board of precinct
officers, and one of the committes appointed in 1749 to build
the first meeting-house. He had a wife Sybil. Children:
Samuel, Nathan, Lois, Mary, Sybil, Mehitable, Olive, Bulah.
The date of his death iz unrecorded; administration was
granted on his estate in 1772,

JOSHUA ELLIS was born Dec. 31, 1703, on the Ellis home-
gtead on Haven Street, in a house which stood on the north
side of the street, (Wotton farm), the site of which can still
be seen. He was the son of Eleazer and Mehitable (Thurs-
ton) Elis, and was descended in the fourth generation from
Samuel Ellis, who emigrated to Americz about 1635. Joshua
Ellis had land from his father’s estate and huilt a house on
the farm of the late Mrs. Cordelia Wotton on Haven Street
in 1732, He was a deacon in the Needham First Parish
Church, and a prominent man in the Dover parish; being a
member of the first precinct commiltee and moderator and
clerk of the first parish meeting. He donated in 1763 land
for the First Parish schoolhouse, which was located on the
present grounds of the First Parish near the railway station,
He was for several winters the master of the Springfield Par-
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